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DEBENTURE TRUSTEE 

BANKERS/ FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Bankers
HDFC Bank Limited
State Bank of India
Financial Institutions (Inclusive)
MAS Financial Services Limited
Vivriti Capital Private Limited
Netafim Agricultural Financing Agency
Private Limited
Grow Money Capital Private limited
Caspian Impact Investments Private limited
Nabkisan Finance Limited

DEPOSITORIES FOR DEMAT

CONTACT DETAILS 
Satin Finserv Limited
Registered Office & Corporate Office:

Vihar Phase-III, Gurugram,
Haryana-122016
CIN: U65999HR2018PLC099128
Email: info@satinfinserv.com
Tel. No.: 0124-47154000
Website: www.satinfinserv.com

CREDIT RATING

Nature
Long Term Bank Facilities - 

Non-convertible Debentures - 

Stable) 

4th floor, B-Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog

ICRA

ICRA

A-Stable

A-Stable
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MISSION AND VISSION
MISSION
To cater to the needs of the rapidly rising MSME industry, fuelling 
both industry growth and employment generation.

VISSION
To facilitate financial inclusiveness across the country and 
contribute to the nation’s overall economic development.

AIM
Aiming to be one of the most trusted and admired NBFC to aid 
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financial services to various Entrepreneurs, MSMEs and Indi-
vidual Businesses, MFI companies.



CUSTOMER’S TESTIMONY 

always dreamt of having his own space. 

With his existing finances he was able to provide for his family however he 
was very keen to have his own shop and expand his business. He 
approached SFL for acquiring a shop in a different location. He availed a 
loan of 15 lacs to purchase this property and stock. The shop was set up 
and he received a very positive response for his business there.

He is finally happy that he could accomplish his dream of owning his own 
shop. He is grateful that SFL stepped in when he needed the finances.

Sohail Iqbal Tai aged 45 years is a resident of Vasai, in Mumbai. He lives with his 
spouse, parents and two children. Their ancestral house was built by his father but 
his father had availed the loan from a private lender and hence was paying heavy 
interest on this loan.

Although they had a good set up of business they we unable to have sufficient 
savings owing to the big debt they had from this private lender. Mr.Sohail 
approached SFL to pay off his debts to the private lender and at the same time 
expand his business of footwear and wall clocks. When he approached us we 
explained him the benefits of formal lending system. We offered him a loan of 11 lakh 
from which he was able to pay off the heavy property debt and also managed to 
purchase some fresh stock for his business.

The financial aid helped him to free his ancestral property from which he is now also 
earing rental income. Also the business saw a boost owing to the fresh stocking in 
their store. Mr.Sohail is extremely happy to have connected with SFL and now has a 
steady income and savings to support his family.

Surinder Singh Applicant Surinder Singh is living in Ambala. He is in the 
business of retail garments .He approached us to expand his business of 
garments trading which is setup in a small village. He wanted to increase 
the stock in his shop to offer wide variety to his customer. For this he 
required a loan. He was offered a loan of 7 lac for 84 months.

Mr. Surinder used the loan amount for purchasing stock and invest in his 
business. Now he has good stock in his shop. He always wanted to expand 
the business and ensure that he could exceed his family expectations and 
save for his children’s future.

With this loan he has been able to set his business in a better manner and 
is grateful to SFL for extending the finance at the time he needed it.
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Sundeep Kaur aged 35 years is a resident of Punjab,
She lives with her husband and two children. She has a tailoring business.
The business was running good but Mr. Paras



CEO SPEAK

MSME customers in Semi Urban and rural India are underserved by the 
formal banking sector. These customers are unable to provide any kind of 
financial documents which will enable an assessment of their cash flows 
and hence support a positive decision to lend to such customers. At SFL we 
understand this problem and are continuously working to understand the 
need of the customer and meet their  working capital needs to sustain and 

Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna

grow their businesses.
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ABOUT THE COMPANY
from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) dated January 09, 2019. SFL is wholly owned subsidiary 

of Satin Creditcare Network Limited. The Company is engaged in the business to provide 

finance whether short term or long term to micro, small and medium scale enterprises and 

business loans to individuals and corporates and acting as business correspondents on 

behalf of various banks and financial institutions”.

The Hon’ble NCLT, vide its order dated 
January 31, 2023 approved the said 
Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgama-
tion of Taraashna Financial Services 
Limited with Satin Finserv Limited and 
Subsequently, after requisite filing with 
concerned ROC, the said Scheme got 
effective from March 01, 2023. The 
Appointed Date of Scheme is April 01, 
2021. Due to said merger, there are 
impact on overall position of the Com-
pany, including financial numbers, 
branches, loans, borrowing details etc.”

Geographically Diversified Micro Business Loan Portfolio

Number of Clients –  1,21,293

Total Disbursement – Rs. 219.431 Cr

Number of Branches - 119

Number of States – 11

Gross Loan Portfolio of Rs. 326.37 Cr as of March 2024

Issued Subscribed and Paid-up Capital Rs. 157.55 Cr

ON MARCH 31, 2024, ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Employees – 1,181
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SOME OF BASIC DETAILS OF THE COMPANY, AS



Satin Finserv has been specifically established to fill a much needed gap in the market, targeting 
small business owners in manufacturing, trading and services – all customer segments that are 

The Company plans to continue its growth journey by opening more branches and further 
investing in technology to optimize operating costs and improve collection efficiency

The Company built on a foundation of happy employees is destined for success. At Satin Finserv, 
we take pride in our people and consider them our most valuable assets – each of 
them plays an indispensable role in the company’s journey to success. In a workplace that  
imbibes professionalism, enthusiasm and ownership, our employees are encouraged to  put their 
individual skills, knowledge and experience to use in a collaborative manner to drive growth and 
productivity. Working as one, these diligent men and women pave the way for a brighter tomorrow 
– for the company, their own teams and themselves. Above all, all our employees are motivat ed 
to deliver the very best to our customers, to the very best of their abilities. It is this culture of team-
work, accountability and ambition that has served to help Satin Finserv Limited grow from one 
milestone to another and achieve resounding success along the way.

Satin Creditcare launched its operations as a provider of individual and small business loans and 
savings services to urban lenders in 1990, going on to be registered as an NBFC with the RBI in 1998 and 
converting into an NBFC-MFI in November 2013. The company completed its IPO in the fiscal year of 1997 
and was duly listed on the Delhi Stock Exchange (DSE), Ludhiana Stock Exchange (LSE) and the Jaipur 
Stock Exchange (JSE). Following the subsequent derecognition of these exchanges by SEBI, Satin Cred-
itcare listed its Equity Shares on the Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) on May 19, 2015, on the NSE on 
August 26 and the BSE on October 20 in the same year, adhering to the guidelines and policies issued 
by SEBI regarding the exit option to regional stock exchanges (issued December 29, 2008) and the exit 
policy for derecogized/non-operational stock exchanges (issued May 30, 2012).

Satin Finserv Limited('The Company') has been specifically established to fill a much needed gap in
the market, targeting small business owners in manufacturing, trading and services – all customer
segments that are usually denied mainstream access to organized finance.

– for the company, their own teams and themselves. Above all, all our employees are motivated
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FINANCIAL NUMBERS

Disbursement (In 
SME – During FY 

Disbursement (In 
JLG/BC – During FY 

AUM (on book)

as on March 31, 2024

2023-24)

INR 182.34 Cr

INR 255.06 Cr

Borrowings

INR 8.62 Cr

(2023-24)

INR 501.01 Cr

Net NPA

PAT

INR 219.43 Cr

EPS

0.36

Earning Per Share

2023-24)

3 Cr
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INR 5.15 Cr



PROGRESSIVE JOURNEY

AUGUST 2018
Incorporated

MARCH 2019
Commenced Business

MARCH 2020
1st full year of Operations
PAT of Rs 64 Lakhs

Recommenced Business
Post 2nd lockdown

JANUARY 2019
NBFC Licence Received

DECEMBER 2019
AUM of Rs.100 Crs

JULY 2020
Reduction of Ticket Size to

3.5 lakhs

2nd full year of Operations
PAT of Rs 477.82 Lakhs

Merger of Taraashna with SFL
 4th Year PAT – 606 Lakhs.

AUM – 682 Cr.
MARCH 2022
3rd full year of Operations
PAT of Rs 181 Lakhs
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JULY 2021

MARCH 2023

MARCH 2021



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

He is a law graduate and a fellow of The 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

since 1984. He has over three decades

of microfinance experience and pioneered 

the concept of daily collection of 

repayments of loans. Besides being an 

expert in lending (especially microfinance) 

he has experience in the field of auditing, 

accounts, project financing, advisory 

services and company law matters. His 

financial engineering experience of almost 

three decades has helped the Company

in operationalstrategy and efficiency.

He has 35 years of experience in Banking 

and served in the  area of Banking, Financial 

Services,  investment Banking and 

Infrastructure Financing. He served as 

Senior Vice President in a leading NBFC 

engaged in providing financial services 

including Asset financing, Debt  Syndication, 

Corporate Advisory, Merchant Banking etc. 

to corporates besides support to sister 

companies in the Group focussed on  

Infrastructure Projects financing. He has 

done MBA in finance and B.com (H) from 

Shree Ram College of Commerce, Delhi 

University

He is a Science graduate from University of 

Rajasthan and also holds a Post graduate 

diploma in Business Administration from 

Annamalai University. Apart from these, he 

holds various other certifi cates, degrees 

and diplomas in the field of Cyber Law, 

History, Labour Laws, Auto Engg and Human 

resources. He has over 33 years of experi 

ence. Prior to joining SFL, He has served RKJ 

group, Escorts Ltd, Panacea Biotech ltd, 

Bata India Ltd, and also Eicher Good Earth 

Ltd at various high capacitiesrespectively

Director 
Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta

Independent Director

Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia
Woman Independent Director WTD & CEO 

Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra
Independent Director 

She is a Independent Director of the 

Company. She is Ph.D. and Master’s in 

Commerce, CFA from India, PGDBA – 

Finance from ICFAI Business School. She has 

taught Finance, Analytics, Strategy, 

Financial Management, Mergers and 

Acquisitions, Financial Business Analytics 

and Data Analytics and Machine Learning. 

She has held important roles in corporates 

such as Actuarial Analysts at Milliman India 

(Actuaries and Consultants), Syndicated 

Research

He has over 29 years of experience in the 

NBFC space and has managed various roles 

in Sales, Credit and Collections, has product 

experience on Sales, Credit and Collections 

for SME lending, Commercial vehicles, Agri 

lending, Construction/ Infrastructure 

lending, Printing and Medical equipment, 

Car finance. His major stints have been with 

Ashok Leyland Finance, Citicorp and 

Magma Fincorp Ltd. In Magma he has 

managed the ABF business and led a team 

of 5000 and AUM of 13000 crs across 250

branches.

Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna

Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh
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THE MANAGEMENT TEAM

He has a total 23 years of work experience of 

which  13 years in NBFC space handling 

product line of Commercial Vehicles, Cars, 

Construction Equipments and  SME. He has 

worked with organizations like Mahindra 

Farm Equipments, Ceat Ltd., JK Industries Ltd., 

Birla Tyres, Magma Fincorp Ltd. His latest 

assignment was with IKF Finance. He has 

completed his Engineering from India Society 

of Engineers.

He has got 18 years of experience in Human 

Resource  Management Function in diverse 

industries such as Automobile & Manufacturing, 

Real  Estate, FMCD, FMCG & NBFC. He has worked 

organizations like Honda, DLF, POSCO, Nikon & 

Kissandhan Agri Finance. His last assignment 

was with Almaha Foods International Pvt. Ltd. as 

Head – HR & Administration. He has done his 

MBA from Symbiosis, Pune and Graduation from 

Deshbandhu Gupta College, Delhi University. 

He has overall experience of more than 7 
years in NBFC sector, RBI/business 
policies, Legal, Equity and debt listed 
compliances. He has worked with 
Slicepay (NBFC & Fintech company) as 
Compliance-Head. Also, worked with 
Home Credit India  in Compliance team 
and  with Era Group as compliance 
officer. He is qualified CS in first attempt, 

graduated from Delhi University. 

He has a total 18 years of work experience in 

the NBFC and manufacturing sector. He has 

worked with organizations like L&T Finance, 

Kotak Mahindra Bank, Magma Fincorp 

limited, ACE Ltd & Barota Finance LTD. His last 

assignment was with Barota Finance Limited 

– Business Head. He has completed his 

Engineering from IME.

He has more than 10 years of experience in 
Financial Services viz accounting, finance, 
budgeting and taxation. Prior to Joining 
Satin, he has worked with 
IIFL Group. He is a Qualified Chartered 
Accountant & Commerce graduate from 

Delhi University.

 He have total experience of 21years out of 
which 18 years into Banking & Finance 
Industry. Currently managing JLG vertical 
for the company. Prior to this he was 
associated with ICICI Bank for 11 years 
where he has handled Retail Assets, 
Agri Assets, Gold Loan and Liability 
products and Branches for the Bank. He 
was also associated with City finance and 

Godrej & Boyce.

Mr. Surojit Chatterjee 
Head Credit & Risk

Mr. Arjun Bansal Mr. Rajkumar Jayaswal

Mr. Manish Dwivedi
Head HR & Admin

 

Mr. Irshad Hussain

 
Head Collection & Business

Business HeadChief Financial Officer & Head-ITCompany Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
Mr. Gurvinder Singh

11
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PRODUCT OFFERINGS
Loan Product Purpose Ticket Size Tenor Collateral Eligibility Criteria

Small Ticket
Business Loan

• Income Generation activities
•

Long term loans ( 3 - 5 years)
Short Term Loans( 1 to <3 year)

1.5L to 3.5L 60 Months Property
• Minimum age-22

• Business stability of minimum 3 years

MFI - NBFC
(Currently on hold) Term Loans Up to 5 Cr 18 Months Book debts

• Minimum AUM of 75 crores.
Minimum net worth of 10 crores

Business stability of minimum 3 years

Large Ticket Term Loans Up to 5 Cr 60 Months Unsecured
• Business stability of minimum 3 years

Company needs to be profitable as per last 
audited financials

JLG Business Income Generation activities Up to 0.65 L 24 Months Unsecured •

• Minimum age -18
MaximumHousehold Income to be < 3 L.

Annual Household Obligation to be 50% of 
Annual Household Income.

SFL also has partnerships with various entities in which small ticket, unsecured, FLDG backed loans are also given
“SFL is also acting as business correspondents on behalf of various banks and financial institutions.”

PAGE 15



TARGET CUSTOMER SEGMENT
Small Ticket Business Loans

Dairy

Agri Equipment 
Dealers/ 

Manufacturers

Agri Chemicals/ 
Fertilizers Dealers/ 

Retailers

Cattle Feed 
Manufacturers/

Retailers/ 
Distributers

Animal Husbandry & 
Poultry

Kirana /General Store

Chemist

Wood and Plastic traders

Cement and Steel Traders

Consumer Durables traders

Cloth Merchents

Foot wear Retailers

Hardware , Electrical 
Sanitary wear Trader / 

Retailer

Restaurants

Auto Service Centre

Diagnostic Centres

Tailoring/Job work

Plumbing  work/
Electrician

Bakery / Sweet Shops

Tent House Businesses

Textile and Garments 
Manufacturer & Job workers

Footwear Manufacturer

Bag Manufacturer

Wood & Plastic Furniture 
Manufacturer

Bottled Water Manufacturer 
& Suppliers

Agri Business Retail / Trading Service Manufacturing
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



Haryana

 Ambala
 Panipat
 Rewari

Maharashtra

 Thane
 Pune

Uttarakhand

West Bengal

 Kolkata

Gujarat

Ahmedabad

Punjab

 Ludhiana
 Patiala

Madhya Pradesh

 Indore
Total Number of Clients-
Number of Employees -
Number of States -

Rajasthan

Jaipur
Delhi

 NCR
 Gurgaon

Orissa

1,21,293
 1,181

 119
 11
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Number of Branches -

as on March 31, 2024

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE*

* Details of few of SME Branches



Credit
Field Team

Telecalling
-Awareness and

-Early bucket

Central
Credit Team

Credit
Operations

Internal
Audit

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk

Management

Bureau
checks

Scorecard Technical

Cashflow
Assessment

Essential
Business

Field Collections
Team

RCU

FI

Sighting

Collateral

Legal

Restricted
LTV

Infant and Early
Delinquency

Concentration
-Industry
-Pincode

Monitoring Underwriting
Process Collections Fraud ChecksCredit Policy

Restricted
Ticket Size
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BOARD’S REPORT 
 
Dear Members, 
  
Your Board of Directors takes immense pleasure in presenting the 6th Board’s Report of Satin Finserv Limited 
(“SFL” or “Company”), along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 
2024.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
SFL was incorporated as a limited company on August 10, 2018 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the ‘Act’) as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Satin Creditcare Network Limited. SFL is Non-Banking 
Finance Company engaged in the business of providing various financial services to entrepreneurs, MSMEs and 
individual businesses, and business correspondence services. SFL’s aim is to “serve the small business owners 
(MSMEs) in a manner that is mutually beneficial” by providing them loans for their business needs. SFL has 
adopted a unique credit underwriting and assessment model to understand the income source and derive eligibility 
of the potential customers. 
 
More information about the Company’s services and operations can be accessed on its website at 
www.satinfinserv.com  
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The Financial Highlights of your Company are as follows: 
 

(In Rs. Lakhs) 
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Revenue from Operations 11,901.04 10,548.41 
Other Income 239.47 102.28 
Total revenue 12,140.51 10,650.69 
Expenses 
Employee Benefit expenses 5755.34 5,318.41 
Impairment on financial instruments 358.23 378.05 
Finance cost 2,643.63 1,763.53 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 156.44 174.89 
Other expenses 2,523.35 2,194.41 
Total expenses 11,436.99 9,829.29 
Profit before Tax 703.52 821.40 
Less: Tax Expenses 188.75 215.10 
Profit after Tax 514.77 606.30 
Add: Other comprehensive income (3.24) (8.20) 
Total comprehensive income 511.53 598.10 
Earnings per share 
Basic 0.36 0.38 
Diluted 0.36 0.38 

 
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY/STATE OF AFFAIRS 
 
The Company offers small ticket business Loans against collateral of property and is also engaged in the business 
of Business Correspondent on behalf of various banks/financial institutions. As on March 31, 2024, SFL had 33 
branches of SME across 11 states. The Company plans to continue its growth journey by opening more branches 
and further investing in technology to optimize operating costs and improve collection efficiency.  
 
During the year under review, the Company reported a profit after tax of Rs. 514.77 lakhs, compared to Rs. 606.30 
lakhs for the previous year, resulting in a decrease of 15.09% in profit. This decline can be attributed to a 13.98% 
increase in total revenue, which rose from Rs. 10,650.69 lakhs to Rs. 12,140.51 lakhs, coupled with a 16.35% 
increase in total expenses, which grew from Rs. 9,829.29 lakhs to Rs. 11,436.99 lakhs. 
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During the period under review, your Company has disbursed Rs. 21,943.16 Lakhs in SME Business and Rs. 
18,234.30 Lakhs in JLG Business. The Company has AUM of Rs. 32,637.32 Lakhs on book (SME Business) and 
INR 17,463.44 Lakhs off book (JLG Business) as on March 31, 2024. 
 
 AMALGAMATION OF TARAASHNA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED IN THE COMPANY 
 
The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench vide its order dated January 31, 2023 had 
approved the Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with SFL and 
after requisite filing with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, the said Scheme got effective from 
March 1, 2023. The Appointed Date of Scheme was April 1, 2021. Due to said Merger, there are impact on overall 
position of the Company, including financial number, branches, loans, borrowings details, etc.  
 
 OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS  
 
The Operational highlights are as under:  

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023 
Number of Branches 119 178 
Number of Active Borrowers  1,21,293  2,69,023 
Gross Loan Portfolio (in Lakhs) 32,637.32 22,557.32  
Number of Employees  1181 1,612 
Total Disbursement (in Lakhs)  21,943.16 12,742.20 
No. of States (in Operation) 11 10 

 
RESERVES 
 
The Company is required to create a statutory reserve under Section 45IC of RBI Act, 1934 (“RBI Act”) and 
transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of 
profit and loss and before any dividend is declared. During the year under review, an amount of Rs. 102.95 lakhs 
has been transferred to such reserve.  
 
DIVIDEND 
 
Keeping in mind, the future business expansion and consequent need to maintain the fund requirements for the 
same, your directors have decided not to recommend any dividend for the financial year 2023-24.  
 
CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
 
Authorized Share Capital  
 
As on  March 31, 2024, the Authorized Share Capital of your Company stood at Rs. 158,00,00,000/- (Rupees 
One Hundred and Fifty Eight Crores only) divided into 15,80,00,000 (Fifteen Crores and Eighty Lakhs) Equity 
Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. 
 
Issued and Paid-up Share Capital 
 
As on March 31, 2024, the Issued and Paid up Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs. 157,55,78,920 (Rupees 
One Hundred Fifty Seven Crores Fifty Five Lakhs Seventy Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty only) 
divided into 15,75,57,892 (Fifteen Crores Seventy Five Lakhs Fifty Seven Thousand Eight Hundred and Ninety 
Two) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. 
 
BORROWINGS 
 
During the period under review, the Company raised through Private placement of Redeemable NCDs an amount 
aggregating to Rs. 20 Crore ( Rupee Twenty Crore Only). These NCDs are listed on BSE Limited (‘BSE’). 
 
Details of Outstanding of Borrowings are given below: 

(In Rs. Lakhs) 
Sr. 
No. 

Lender’s Name Type of Debt Outstanding as on 
March 31, 2024 

Outstanding as on 
March 31, 2023 

1. Northern Arc Capital Limited Term Loan 1,006.00 512.38 
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2. Caspian Impact Investments 
Private Limited 

Term Loan 1,242.00 1,803.14 

3. MAS Financial Services Limited Term Loan 2,311.00 2,150.00 
4. State Bank of India Term Loan 898.00 1,402.97 
5. NETAFIM Agricultural Financing 

Agency Private Private Limited 
Term Loan 419.00 576.09 

6. Maanaveeya Development & 
Finance Private Limited 

Term Loan 2,191.00 933.64 

7. ICICI Bank Limited Term Loan 685.00 562.50 
8. ESAF Small Finance Bank Term Loan 1,670.00 1,000.00 
9. Vivriti Capital Private Limited Term Loan 2,495.00 1,000.00 
10. Blacksoil Capital Private Limited Term Loan 500.00 1,000.00 
11. MAS Financial Services Limited PTC 453.00 702.76 
12. IKF Finance Limited Term Loan 1,167.00 - 
13. Muthoot Capital Services Limited Term Loan 469.00 - 
14. Nabkisan Finance Limited Term Loan 992.00 250.00 
15. MAS Financial Services Limited PTC 639.00 - 
16. Tourism Finance Corporation of 

India Limited 
Term Loan 934.00 - 

17. Poonawalla Fincorp Limited Term Loan 2,382.00 - 
18. MAS Financial Services Limited PTC 733.00 - 
19. Clix Capital Services Pvt Ltd PTC 2,106.00 - 
20. HDFC Bank Limited Auto Loan 19.00 18.95 
21. Multiple Investors NCDs 2,000.00 - 

Total 25,311.00 11,912.43 
   
The Company has been regular in servicing all its debt obligations and have not defaulted in any repayments. 
 
DEPOSITS 
 
During the year under review, your Company did not accept/ renew any deposits within the meaning of Section 
73 of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 
 
RBI NORMS AND STANDARDS  
 
The Company is in compliance of the regulatory requirement of Net Owned Funds (NOF) as defined under 
Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, read with Regulation 6 of Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non- Banking 
Financial Company- Scale Based  Regulation) Directions, 2023 to carry/continue its business as a Middle Layer 
category NBFC. 
 
The Company has complied and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations and guidelines issued by 
RBI such as Capital Adequacy, Net Owned Funds, provisioning for Non-Performing Assets and for Standard 
Assets, Concentration of Credit and Investment, filings, etc.  
 
Please refer to Note no. 46 Notes to balance sheet for Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (“CRAR”) of the Company. 
 
In line with the RBI guidelines for Asset Liability Management (ALM) system for NBFCs, the Company has an 
Asset Liability Management Committee which meets periodically to review its ALM risks and opportunities. The 
Company is also in compliance with the NBFC – Corporate Governance Norms and Master Direction-Reserve 
Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and other 
guidelines/circulars/directions as issued by RBI from time to time. 
 
FAIR PRACTICE CODE 
 
Your Company has adhered to Board approved Fair Practice Code in terms of applicable RBI guidelines. The 
Board approved Fair Practice Code covers the required disclosures and norms as required under applicable RBI 
guidelines/directions. The Board periodically review the Fair Practice Code and its functioning. The Board 
approved Fair Practice Code is disclosed on the website of the Company at www.satinfinserv.com. Also, Fair 
Practice Code are being displayed at branches, regional offices and where business is transacted.   
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 
The Board of Directors affirm that the Company has complied with the applicable and mandatory Secretarial 
Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Your Company is committed to Integrity and transparency in all its dealings and places high emphasis on business 
ethics. The Board of your Company exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of term and 
endeavors to enhance long-term shareholder value. The Governance framework is anchored by the clearly defined 
policies and procedures covering areas such anti- bribery and anti-corruption, Prevention of Sexual Harassment 
at Workplace and Whistle Blower Policy. 
 
A Corporate Governance Report as required under Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking 
Financial Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023, as amended, forms an 
integral part of this report. 
 
MANAGEMNENT AND DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non- Banking Financial Company- 
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023. The Management and Discussion and Analysis 
Report forms an integral part of this report. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY  
 
There were no material changes and commitments or event recorded after the close of financial year March 31, 
2024 till the date of signing of Board’s Report.  
 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS  
 
There were no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the year ended on March 31, 2024. 
 
However, the Board of Directors and Shareholders in their respective meetings held on January 19, 2024 had 
approved the alteration in the main objects of Memorandum of Association of the Company by adding following 
new clause no. 7:  
 
To establish and to carry on the business as selling agents or commission agents, business promoter by way of 
advertisement through any mode including printed display, sign boards, digital displays within and/or outside 
branches, on events such as loan mela(s), conference, gatherings, on digital platforms including websites, mobile 
apps, through banners and videos, email etc. of all kinds of electrical, electronics and mechanical machines, 
equipments and appliances including generator sets, washing machines, refrigerators, music systems, scooters, 
motorcycles, mopeds and other two- wheelers, cars, buses, vans, jeeps, trucks and tempos, data processing 
machines and equipments computer- software packages, fax machines and copying machines etc. 
 
Further, your company has decided to exit the JLG Business as Business Correspondent on behalf of other Banks. 
  
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, INVESTMENT OR GUARANTEE 
 
During the year under review, in terms of the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), 
the Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of investment Companies. 
 
Since, the Company is Non-Banking Financial Company, the disclosures regarding particulars of the loans given, 
guarantees given and security provided is exempt under the provisions of Section 186(11) of the Act, read with 
rules made thereunder, as amended. Further, the details of investments made by the Company are given in the 
Notes to the Financial Statements.   
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HOLDING, SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 
Your Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of Satin Creditcare Network Limited. Your Company does not have 
any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company within the meaning of clause (6) Section 2 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 at any time during the year ended March 31, 2024.  
 
ANNUAL RETURN 
 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time 
the Annual Return for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is available on the Company’s website on 
https://satinfinserv.com/annual-returns/ 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 
All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered into by the Company during the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2024 with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. Prior approval is 
obtained for Related Party Transactions which are entered in the Ordinary Course of Business and are at Arm’s 
Length. All Related Party Transactions and subsequent material modifications are placed before the Audit 
Committee for review and approval. Accordingly, the disclosure of RPTs as required under Section 134(3)(h) of 
the Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. Further, details of Related Party Transactions as required to be 
disclosed as per Indian Accounting Standard - 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
There was no material significant related party transaction made by your Company with its Promoters, Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel’s or other related party falling under the respective define of Related Party as per the 
Act and rules made there on including any amendments coming from time to time, which might have a potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.  
 
CSR EXPENDITURE 
 
The Company strongly believes that sustainable community development is essential for harmony between the 
community and the industry. Sustainability and social responsibility are an integral part of the corporate strategy 
of the Company. The Board oversees the implementation of CSR Policy of the Company. However, during the 
year under review, the Company was not required to make any contribution towards the CSR due to negative 
figure of average net profit of the Company during the three immediate preceding financial year. Further, the 
Board adopted CSR Policy is available at the website of the Company at www.satinfinserv.com.  
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANEGERIAL PERSONEL (KMP) 
 
1. Board of Directors  

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors comprises of 5 (Five) Directors, consisting 3 (Three) Independent 
Directors, 1 (One) Non-Executive Director and 1 (One) Whole Time Director. Their details are as follows: 
 

S. No. Name of Director(s) Category of Director(s) 
1. Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh Non-Executive Director 
2. Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna Whole-Time Director & CEO 
3. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra  Independent Director  
4. Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta Independent Director  
5. Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia Independent Director  

 
1(a) Appointment: 
 
Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna (DIN: 03323118) was initially appointed as CEO on January 19, 2024, and subsequently 
assumed the position of Whole Time Director & CEO on March 22, 2024, following approval by the shareholders 
at their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting. 
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1(b) Resignation/Cessation: 

Mr. Sumit Mukherjee (DIN: 08369056), Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company, had resigned w.e.f 
August 31, 2023. The Board place on record its appreciation for the valuable contribution of Mr. Sumit Mukherjee 
in the sustained growth of the Company during his tenure. 
 

2. Key Managerial Personnel: 

During the year under review, Mr. Gurvinder Singh was appointed as Company Secretary & Chief Compliance 
Officer as a Whole Time Key Managerial Personnel of the Company w.e.f. January 20, 2024 in place of Mr. 
Puneet Jolly who had resigned w.e.f. December 19, 2023 (closure of business hours).  
 
As on March 31, 2024, Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna, Whole-time Director & CEO, Mr. Arjun Bansal, Chief Financial 
Officer & Head IT and Mr. Gurvinder Singh, Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer, are Key 
Managerial Personnel of your Company in accordance with the provisions of Sections 2(51) and 203 of the Act, 
read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 
 
The present term of Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna, Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company shall expire on March 
21, 2029. 
 
Retire by Rotation 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Harvinder Pal Singh (DIN: 00333754), Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation for this year and 
being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment as Director. Brief resume and other details of Mr. Harvinder Pal 
Singh who is proposed to be re-appointed as a Director of the Company have been furnished, with the explanatory 
statement to the notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
BOARD MEETINGS 
 
The Board met 7 (Seven) times during the year under review. The meetings were held on April 22, 2023, July 21, 
2023, September 18, 2023, October 23, 2023, December 14, 2023, January 19, 2024 and March 21, 2024. The 
details of the same have been included in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms an integral part of this 
Report. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Audit Committee constituted in terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of RBI 
guidelines. The Committee comprises of (Three) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors. 
 
The Audit Committee, in compliance with recent RBI amendments, ensures that Information System Audits of 
the Internal Systems are conducted at least once every two years to assess the operational risks faced by the 
NBFCs. Additionally, The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting process and reviews, with the 
Management, the financial statements to ensure that the same are correct and credible. The Audit Committee has 
the ultimate authority and responsibility to select and evaluate the Independent Auditors in accordance with the 
law. The Audit Committee also reviews performance of the Statutory Auditors, the Internal Auditors, adequacy 
of the internal control system. 
 
During the year under review, all the recommendation of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of 
Directors of the Company. The Composition of the Audit Committee and its terms of reference and the details of 
meetings attended by the Audit Committee members are provided in Corporate Governance Report which forms 
an integral part of this Report. 
 
STATEMENT ON DECLARATION "CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENCE" U/S 149 (6) FROM 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND DECLARATION AND UNDERTAKING AS PER APPLICABLE 
RBI GUIDELINES 
 
Pursuant to Section 149(6) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors includes 
Independent Directors, ensuring an appropriate balance of skills, experience, and knowledge. This enables the 
Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. The Company has a Board-approved Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee (NRC) in accordance with applicable RBI guidelines and the Companies Act, 2013, 
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ensuring that appointed directors are fit, qualified, and periodically evaluated. During the year under review, the 
Company received Declarations of Independence from all the Independent Directors, in compliance with Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, as well as declarations and undertakings from each director on fit and proper 
criteria per the provisions of the Master Directions – Reserve Bank Of India (Non-Banking Financial Company 
–Scale Based Regulation, 2023 dated October 19, 2023, as amended.  
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
 
Performance appraisal framework was formulated and adopted by the Board. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec 
134(3)(p) read with Sec 178 of the Act, a formal evaluation of the performance of the Board, it’s Committees 
(mandatory under Secretarial Standard 1), Individual Directors and the Chairperson of the meetings was carried 
out for FY 2023-24. Accordingly, the performance evaluation has been done for FY 2023-24 and evaluation was 
carried out using questionnaire covering, amongst others, composition of board, effective decision making, advice 
and necessary guidance, open communication, meaningful participation, knowledge & expertise of Directors, 
contribution at Board meetings etc. Further, Individual Directors (Non- Executive and Independent) were 
evaluated in terms of participation in the meetings of Board and Committees, Education & Qualification, effective 
examination of the financial and other information related to the operations of the Company, raising of valid 
concerns, impartial & meaningful participation and adequate deliberations in the meeting. The actions emerging 
from the Board evaluation process were collated and on consolidated basis, the summary of the ratings was 
prepared, and the report of performance evaluation so arrived at, was circulated to Independent Directors, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board along with ratings. 
 
The Independent Directors in their meeting held on March 21, 2024 has reviewed and forwarded to the Board the 
performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole of the Company taking into account the views 
of Directors of the Company for the FY 2023-24 and reviewed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 
information between the Company management and the Board as required under the provisions of the Act, and 
rules/schedule made thereunder.  
 
The Board approved NRC has evaluated the performance of the Board as a whole Directors, Non-executive 
Directors) and the Committees of the Board (mandatory under Secretarial Standard 1) in its meeting dated March 
21, 2024 for the FY 2023-24 and forwarded the same for Board’s consideration. 
 
Thereafter, the evaluation qualitative comments and suggestions of Independent Directors and NRC were 
circulated to the Board and Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 21, 2024 inter-alia has evaluated 
the performance of overall Board as a whole, Committees (mandatory under Secretarial Standard -1) and 
Individuals Directors of the Company for the FY 2023-24 as required under applicable laws. The Board found 
the overall performance “satisfactory” for FY 2023-24. 
 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING 
 
In compliance with Schedule IV of the Act, the Independent Directors held their separate meeting on March 21, 
2024 inter alia, for the following: 
 
1. To review the performance of Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and the Chairperson (Taking 

into views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors). 

2. To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management 
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

All Independent Directors i.e. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra, Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta and Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia were 
present in the meeting. The Independent Directors present at the meeting deliberated on the above and were satisfy 
with the performance of non-independent director and the Board as a whole. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY 
  
Your Company has aligned its current systems of internal financial control with the requirement of the Act. The 
Company is continuing to monitor the efficiency of internal controls through a comprehensive internal control 
framework which had been designed to ensure transparency and accountability in an organisation’s process of 
designing and implementing a system of internal control. Through this framework risks in the Company are 
identified and analysed and appropriate responses are managed. Moreover, the Audit Committee reviews the audit 
reports submitted by internal auditors and statutory auditors of the Company. Statutory Auditors review the 
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Internal Financial Controls and inform the same in its report. Other Committees i.e. ALCO, RMC and IT Strategy 
Committee review the required matters on frequent basis and ensure proper system and processes.  
 
The Company’s internal controls systems are commensurate with its size and the nature of its operations. These 
have been designed as well as operating effectively to provide a reasonable assurance with regard to recording 
and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable statutes, safeguarding 
assets from unauthorised use, executing transactions with proper authorisation, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial disclosures and ensuring compliance of corporate policies. 
 
Also, an audit on internal systems, processes and controls as required under Master Direction Information 
Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector dated June 08, 2017, was conducted by CyberCube Services Private 
Limited. Further, as per the said audit report, all of controls as required under RBI Master Direction Information 
Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector are implemented by the Company. This indicates youc Company 
has an integrated and robust Information Security Management System in its processes and information security. 
 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISM 
 
Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud, unethical behaviour and 
mismanagement, if any. Whistle Blower Policy ensures that the activities of the Company and its employees are 
conducted in a fair and transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism. The Whistle 
Blower Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons and ensures that any employee, 
officer and director who violates the requirements of this policy will be subject to disciplinary action. Audit 
Committee review the functioning and complaint received under Whistle Blower Policy, if any, on quarterly 
basis. During the period under review, the Company has not received any complaint under Whistle Blower 
Policy/Vigil Mechanism. The whistle Blower policy is also available at the Website of the Company at 
www.satinfinserv.com.   
 
AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT 
 
M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No. 021776N), have been 
appointed on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Board of Director’s (in conformity with the 
provisions of section 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (including amendments thereto), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the  period of 5 years 
from the conclusion of the first annual general meeting of the Company till the conclusion of sixth annual general 
meeting. The said appointment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed 
thereunder. 
 
The Board of Directors of your Company had recommended the re-appointment of M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No. 021776N) for the second term of 5 years i.e. from the 
conclusion of Sixth Annual General Meeting to till the conclusion of Eleventh Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.  
 
The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company. Further, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on July 24, 2024, based on recommendation of 
the Audit Committee of the Company, has reviewed and took note the eligibility of M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No. 021776N) for the financial year 2024-25, based on 
eligibility letter, received from Statutory Auditors and the Board has reviewed and monitored their independency, 
performance and effectiveness of audit process as per applicable laws. 
The Auditors’ Reports for the financial year 2024-25 does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse 
remark or disclaimer. The notes to the Accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do 
not call for further comments. The Board has placed on record its review appreciation for the services rendered 
by M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as a Statutory Auditor of the Company. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT  
 
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 22, 2023, based on recommendation of Audit Committee 
of the Company, has appointed M/s S. Behera & Co., Company Secretaries (ICSI PCS Registration No. 5980), 
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as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY 2023-24 for conducting the audit of the secretarial and related 
records of the Company. The Company had provided all the assistance and the facilities to the Secretarial Auditor 
for conducting the Secretarial Audit. The secretarial audit report is annexed to this Board’s Report as Annexure 
I. There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made in the Secretarial Audit Report.  
 
The Board has placed on record its review appreciation for the services rendered by M/s. S. Behera & Co. 
Company Secretaries, as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company.  
 
INTERNAL AUDIT  
 
The Company has in place an adequate internal audit framework to monitor the efficacy of internal controls with 
the objectives of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an independent, objective and 
reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and 
governance processes. The Internal Audit Plan is approved by the Audit Committee and Board. The Internal Audit 
Report, with significant audit observations, if any, are circulated to the Audit Committee quarterly basis for review 
and noting. The audit approach verifies, compliance with the regulatory, operational and system related 
procedures and controls. Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the Company 
has Board appointed Internal Auditor to review and conduct the audit as per Board approved Internal Audit Plan. 
  
COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT 
 
Maintenance of cost records and requirement of Cost Audit as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable for the business activities carried out by 
the Company. 
 
REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS 
 
During the year under review, neither the statutory auditor nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the Audit 
Committee or to the Board, under section 143(12) of the Act, any instances of the fraud committed in the 
Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board’s Report. 
However, there have been one instance of misappropriation and criminal breach of trust including embezzlement 
of cash by the employees amounting to Rs. 1.76 Lakhs. In such cases, the action taken by the Company is to 
terminate the services of such employees and also initiate legal action against such employees. 
 
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company confirm: 
 

1. That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departure. 

2. That they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company on March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

3. That they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities. 

4. That they have prepared the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2024 on a going concern 
basis and; 

5. That they have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively during the financial year ended March 
31, 2024. 
 

DEBETURE TRUSTEE  
 
During the year under review, the Company has allotted 2,000 (Two Thousand) Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, 
Redeemable, Taxable, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs” or “Debentures”) of face value of Rs. 1,00,000/- 
(Rupees One Lakh only) each, aggregating up to Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crores Only) vide Working 
Committee resolution dated March 4, 2024. As per the requirement, the Company had appointed Axis Trustee 
Services Limited, having Corporate Office at The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West, 
Mumbai-400028, as the Debenture Trustee for the Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company. The 
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Company has duly submitted required documents, intimations to Debenture Trustee as per agreed covenants and 
made timely payments.  
 
CREDIT RATING  
 
The credit rating details of the Company as on March 31, 2024 were as follows: 
 

Rating Agency Facilities/Instruments Amount (INR Crores) Rating Rating Action 

ICRA 
Limited 

Long-term fund-based bank 
facilities 

80.00 [ICRA]A
- (Stable) 

New Rating 

NCD Programme       60.00 
[ICRA]A- 
(Stable) 

New Rating 

 
INFORMATION ON MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATOR OR COURT OR 
TRIBUNAL 
 
During the period under review, no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and operations of the Company in future. 
 
PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 
 
Being into the business related to financial services; provisions pertaining to conservation of energy is not 
applicable. Further, there are no foreign exchange earnings(s) or outgo during the financial year 2023-24. Further, 
pursuant to of the Act, read with sub-rule(3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the information 
is as follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 
A) Conservation of energy 

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 
ii. the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate 
sources of energy; 
iii. the capital investment on energy conservation equipment. 

Not applicable, in view of the 
nature of the business of the 
Company being Financial 
Services. 
  

B) Technology absorption 
i. the efforts made towards technology absorption; 
ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost 
reduction, product development or import substitution; 
iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last 
three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)- 

a. the details of technology imported; 
b. the year of import; 
c. whether the technology been fully absorbed; 
d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 
not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and 

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 

The Company is steadily applying 
and adopting technology to 
improve services efficiently, and 
the Company have not imported 
any technology. 
  

C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo Not any 
  

 
POLICIES 
 
1. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY 
 
Sustainability and Social Responsibility are an integral element of Corporate Strategy of the Company. The 
Company has in place the Board approved Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in line with the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended from to time. The CSR policy 
is available on the website of the Company at www.satinfinserv.com.   
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However, as exempted under Section 135(9) of the Act, the Company was not require to constitue Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee. 
 
2. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. The risk management process is adopted 
and reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Company on a regular basis which provides for identification, 
assessment and control of risks. Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors regularly review 
compliance with risk policies, monitor risk tolerance limits, review and analyse risk exposure related to specific 
issues and provides oversight of risk across the organization. 
 
The risk management framework covers integrated risk management mainly comprising Credit Risk, Market 
Risk, Operational Risk, Fraud Risk and other risks. The Credit Risk management structure includes documented 
credit policies and procedures for each financial product and service of the business.  
 
Risks associated with frauds are mitigated through Board approved Fraud Monitoring Policy. Fraud risk is 
monitored through oversight by senior management, who review matters relating to fraud risk, including 
corrective and remedial actions as regards to people and processes. 
 
 
3. SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY FOR WOMEN UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013. 
 
Your Company is committed to ensure fair environment for its executive, staff and workers. In compliance to the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,(“POSH ACT”) 
the Company has adopted Sexual Harassment Policy approved vide Board of Directors which ensure free and fair 
enquiry process with clear timelines. The Company have duly constituted internal committee as required under 
the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to review the 
cases related to sexual harassment. Your directors further state that during the year under review, there was no 
case reported pursuant to the Sexual Harassment to women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013. Also, in order to comply with applicable laws, the annual return as required under POSH Act for 
calendar year ended December 31, 2023 was filed with concerned authorities within the prescribed timelines.   
 
4. Policy on Nomination & Remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & Senior 
Management and other Employees 
 
In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay equitable 
remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and other employees of the 
Company, to have diversified Board, to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals 
of the Company and in terms of Section 178 of the Act, as amended from time to time and 
Rules/Regulations/Guidelines/Notifications issued by RBI and SEBI from time to time. Your Company has in 
place Nomination and Remuneration Policy which is also available at www.satinfinserv.com  
 
5. OTHER STATUTORY POLICIES  
 
The Company has all statutory policies as required under applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
applicable RBI guidelines. 
 
DISCLOSURES UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 
 
Your Company has neither filed any application nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the reporting year, hence no disclosure is required under this section. 
 
Further, there are no details required to be reported with regard to difference between amount of the valuation 
done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions as your Company has not done any settlement with any Bank or Financial Institutions since its 
inception. 
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THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME 
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE 
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF 
 
The Company has not entered into one time settlement of any loan obtained from Banks or financial institutions.  
Therefore, the details regarding the difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time 
settlement and the valuation done while taking loans from the banks or financial institutions. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
Your Directors would like to place on record their gratitude for the cooperation received from lenders, our valued 
customers and shareholders. The Board, in specific, wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation of the 
contribution made by all the employees towards growth of the Company. 

 
   For and on behalf of the Board 

  FOR SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
 
       
 
            
      Sd/-    Sd/- 
Place: Gurugram     Bhuvnesh Khanna               Harvinder Pal Singh 
Date: July 24, 2024         Whole-time Director & CEO        Director 
                                                           DIN: 03323118   DIN: 00333754 



ANNEXURE I 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 

MARCH 31, 2024 (Form No. MR-3) 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
The Members of 
SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
(CIN: U65999HR2018PLC099128) 
4th Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, 
Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana-122016  
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
corporate practices by SATIN FINSERV LIMITED (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and made available and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, in our opinion we hereby report that, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory 
provisions stated hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;  
 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings- Not 
applicable during the Financial Year under review;  
 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable: 
 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review; 
 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018- Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review; 
 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021- Not 

Applicable during the Financial Year under review;  



 
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; 
 
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  
 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021- Not 

during the Financial Year under review; and 
 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018- Not 

Applicable during the Financial Year under Review; 
 

vi. The Company has identified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically applicable to the 
Company: 
 
1. Rules, Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to NBFC -

NDSI ICC which are specifically applicable to the Company. 
2. Local laws as applicable to all its branches and offices  

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i)  Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (‘SS-1’) and General Meetings 
(‘SS-2’) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and 

(ii)  The Listing Agreement entered by the Company with BSE Limited. 
 
We report that, during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, and Guidelines mentioned above. 
 
We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also on 
the review of the compliances report of Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer/Chief Financial 
Officer/Whole Time Director & CEO and respective departmental heads taken on record by the Board of Directors of 
the Company in their meetings and based on the review of the compliance mechanism established by the Company 
we are of the opinion that, adequate system and process exist in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliances with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.  
 
We further report that  

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  
 

 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except where consent of directors was received for 
circulation of the agenda and notes on agenda at a shorter notice 
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 

 All decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried out with requisite majority. 
 
We further report that the Company is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015 with respect to Structured Digital Database. 



 
We further report that during the audit period the following specific events/actions have taken place in pursuance 
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above which may have a major 
bearing on the company’s affairs: 
 

 The Working Committee of the Board of Directors vide their meeting held on September 22, 2023 has 
approved the allotment of 1,70,43,033 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each (Indian Rupees Ten) with 
premium amount of INR 13.47 (Indian Rupees Thirteen and Forty-Seven Paisa) to its Holding Company i.e. 
Satin Creditcare Network Limited;  
 

 The members vide their EOGM dated January 19, 2024 has altered the Memorandum of Association of the 
Company by amending the Object Clause III (A) by inserting a new clause for commencement of all or any 
of the business proposed therein; 
 

 The members vide their EOGM dated January 19, 2024 has altered the Articles of Association of the 
Company; 
 

 The Working Committee of the Board of Directors vide their meeting held on March 4, 2024 has approved 
the allotment of 2,000 senior, secured, rated, listed, redeemable, taxable, non-convertible debentures 
denominated in INR, having a face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate 
face value of INR 20,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Twenty Crore) ("Debentures"), issued on a private placement 
basis; 

 

 The non-convertible debentures got Listed in BSE during the Financial Year under review; 
 

 The members vide their EOGM dated March 21, 2024 has appointed Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna as Whole Time 
Director of the Company for the term of 5 years effective from March 22, 2024 to March 21, 2029. 

 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of 
this report. 

 
 

For S. Behera & Co. 
Company Secretaries 
 
 SD/- 
Shesdev Behera 
Proprietor 
CP No. 5980 
ICSI UDIN: F008428F000130066 
Date: April 15, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Annexure-‘A 
To, 
The Members of 
SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 
(CIN: U65999HR2018PLC099128) 
4th Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, 
Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana-122016 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter: 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper 
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that 
the systems are adequate and operate effectively. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed 
by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 
 

3. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 
 

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is adequate and 
appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.  
 

5. Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance whether the statements prepared, documents or 
records, in relation to Secretarial Audit, maintained by the Company, are free from misstatement. 
 

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
Disclaimer 
 

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted affairs of the Company. 
 

8. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company. 

 
For S. Behera & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

SD/- 
 
Shesdev Behera 
Proprietor 
CP No. 5980 
ICSI UDIN: F008428F000130066 
Date: April 15, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

GLOBAL ECONOMY 

Global recovery is steady but slow and differs by region 

The global economic recovery remains steady but slow, with regional variations. The baseline forecast predicts a 
global economic growth rate of 3.2% in 2024 and 2025, mirroring the growth rate of 2023. Advanced economies 
are expected to see a slight uptick in growth from 1.6% in 2023 to 1.7% in 2024 and 1.8% in 2025. Conversely, 
emerging markets and developing economies are anticipated to experience a modest slowdown from 4.3% in 2023 
to 4.2% in both 2024 and 2025. Over the next five years, global growth is projected to average 3.1%, the lowest 
in decades. 

Global inflation is expected to decrease steadily, from 6.8% in 2023 to 5.9% in 2024 and further to 4.5% in 2025, 
with advanced economies achieving their inflation targets sooner than their emerging counterparts. However, core 
inflation is anticipated to decline more gradually. 

Emerging markets, especially the G20 economies like China, play a significant role in the global economy, 
accounting for about one-third of world GDP and one-quarter of global trade. Economic shocks in these regions 
have substantial spillover effects on global activity. Trade, particularly through global value chains, is a key 
channel for these spillovers. A plausible growth acceleration in G20 emerging markets, excluding China, could 
support global growth and have positive ripple effects worldwide. Policymakers should prepare for potential 
shocks by maintaining adequate buffers and strengthening policy frameworks to manage potential shocks from 
these economies. 
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INDIAN ECONOMY 

India's economy demonstrated robust growth, expanding by 7.8% year-on-year in the first quarter of 2024, with 
expectations of continued momentum. The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) facilitated this growth with a record 
surplus transfer of ₹2.11 trillion ($25.3 billion), aiding government spending and economic stimulation. 

In FY 2023-24, India's GDP grew by an impressive 8.2%, supported by strong investment, subdued private 
consumption, and significant contributions from discrepancies in GDP components. Real GDP is estimated to 
have reached ₹173.82 lakh crore in 2023-24, reflecting an 8.2% growth from the previous year. 

Looking forward, the Indian economy is projected to grow at 6.8% in the current fiscal year (FY25), driven by 
strong domestic demand and robust growth in the manufacturing and services sectors. Real GDP growth for 2024-
25 is forecasted at 7%. 

 

It expects the economy to grow at 6.8% in the current fiscal year starting April, and close to 7% annually over the 
next three years. 

The gross domestic product growth in January-March quarter was lower than a revised 8.6% expansion in the 
previous quarter, but higher than 6.7% forecast by economists. India's economic growth for the FY 2023-24 was 
revised up to 8.2%, also the highest among large economies globally, from an earlier government estimate of 
7.6%. 

In the January-March quarter, the headline growth figure was boosted by a sharp fall in subsidies, while gross 
value added (GVA), seen by economists as a more stable measure of growth, rose 6.3%, data showed. 

For the previous quarter, GVA growth was revised to 6.8%. 
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INFLATION 

Retail inflation eased to 4.85 percent in March 2024, down from 5.09 percent in February 2024, as per the Ministry 
of Statistics and Programme Implementation (MoSPI). The combined Consumer Food Price Index (CFPI) stood 
at 8.52 percent for March 2024. This moderation in inflation is primarily due to price increases in food articles, 
electricity, crude petroleum, natural gas, machinery, and equipment. 

NBFCs have been emerged as key facilitators of credit to growing segments, including MSMEs (micro, small and 
medium enterprises), agriculture, start-ups, entrepreneurs, self-employed and rural population seeking personal 
loans. An RBI report on the performance of the banking sector during 2022-23 and 2023-24 revealed that while 
credit to MSMEs through banks grew by 12.7 % and 12.4 % year -on-year (YoY) as of March 2022 and March 
2023, the corresponding figures for NBFCs was 21.2 % and 42.4 % respectively– roughly twice over. 

FUTURE PROJECTION 

Indian economy is projected to expand by 6.6 per cent in the current fiscal year (FY25). Real GDP growth for 
2024-25 is projected at 7% with Q1 at 7.2%; Q2 at 6.8%; Q3 at 7.0%; and Q4 at 6.9%. 
Moody's anticipates loans at NBFCs to grow by about 15 percent over the next 12-18 months, driven by 
infrastructure financing by large government-owned NBFCs and loans to SMEs. The sector's profitability is 
expected to remain strong despite rising funding costs, supported by robust economic growth and strong Credit 
demand. 
 

OUTLOOK 

The Indian economy's positive outlook, supported by robust domestic demand, strong credit growth, and 
government initiatives, bodes well for the NBFC sector. Strategic collaborations, technological advancements, 
and a focus on financial inclusivity will be crucial for the sector's success in 2024 and beyond. 

As NBFCs continue to adapt to the evolving regulatory and economic landscape, their role in achieving the goals 
outlined in the Atmanirbhar Bharat vision will be pivotal. The sector's future appears promising, with projected 
growth driven by strong credit demand and economic recovery. 
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 

The Indian financial system plays a crucial role in the economic development of the country. It effectively 
manages the flow of funds between households, who save, and investors or businesses, who can utilize these funds 
for productive investments, benefiting both parties. The financial services sector in India exemplifies the progress 
and potential of the economy. Projected to grow significantly through 2035, this sector is driven by increasing 
incomes, a strong government emphasis on financial inclusion, and the widespread adoption of digital 
technologies. By 2030, digital payments in India are expected to surpass $1 trillion, highlighting the sector's rapid 
evolution and future opportunities. 

Growth in Demand for Commercial Loans 

The demand for commercial loans surged by 29% in the July-September 2023 quarter compared to the same 
period in 2022, driven by increased economic activity. The credit demand for MSMEs at Non-Banking Financial 
Companies (NBFCs) grew the fastest at 39% during this quarter, representing 14% of the total credit demand. 

Growth in Credit Supply 

Credit supply to MSMEs increased by 20% year-on-year (YoY) in the July-September 2023 quarter, indicating 
improved lender confidence. Commercial credit lending continues to maintain its overall growth, building on the 
initial boost provided by the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) launched by the Government 
of India to support the MSME sector. Enhanced and timely credit data availability and the rapid implementation 
of digital lending infrastructure have significantly contributed to this improved confidence. There was a 7% YoY 
growth in borrowers availing loans under INR 1 crore (Micro segment), while the value of loans sought by 
borrowers for amounts greater than INR 10 crore (Medium segment) decreased. 

Retail Assets Under Management (AUM) of NBFCs 

The Retail AUM of NBFCs (excluding Housing Finance Companies - HFCs) continued its growth momentum in 
Q2 FY2024, expanding by 29% YoY. ICRA projects the NBFC-Retail segment to grow by 21-23% in FY2024, 
slightly lower than the growth observed in the first half of FY2024 due to the base effect from the expansion in 
the second half of FY2023. Growth is expected to moderate further in FY2025 due to tighter market liquidity 
expectations and the large base created by strong growth in FY2023 and FY2024. 

Unsecured and Secured Loan Segments 

The unsecured loan segment, comprising personal loans (PL), consumer loans (CL), unsecured SME loans, and 
microfinance institution (MFI) loans, which fuelled growth in the previous fiscal year, continued to support 
growth in the first half of FY2024. However, the growth of PL and CL is expected to slow down in H2 FY2024 
and FY2025 due to recent regulatory measures. The secured NBFC-Retail AUM, which includes vehicle finance 
(VEF), gold loans (GL), and small business loans (SBL), is forecasted to grow by 18-20% in FY2024 and 16-
18% in FY2025. 

Funding Requirements and Liquidity Management 

The incremental funding requirement (in addition to refinancing existing/maturing debt) is estimated at around 
Rs.3 trillion annually for FY2024 and FY2025. As the share of bank credit to NBFCs is expected to remain 
constrained, these entities will need to increase funding from other sources, including market issuances and 
securitization, to achieve the anticipated growth. NBFCs are also reducing on-book liquidity to fund a portion of 
their disbursements. 

Credit Costs and Profitability 

Over the past two years, NBFCs (excluding HFCs) have reduced their provisions. While credit costs have 
remained stable in FY2024, incremental provisioning required for loan growth and potential loan losses in FY2025 
is expected to lead to a slight increase in credit costs compared to the previous fiscal year. Regulatory 
developments and tighter liquidity conditions are anticipated to increase the weighted average cost of funds (CoF) 



 

                                                 

P a g e  | 6 

by 30-50 basis points (bps) in H2 FY2024 and an additional 20-40 bps in FY2025. As most NBFCs have a fixed-
rate loan book, they are likely to face margin pressure in FY2025. This, combined with the stabilization of credit 
costs, is expected to moderate net profitability by 20-40 bps in FY2025 compared to FY2024. 

Capitalization and Growth Targets 

The capitalization profile of NBFCs is expected to remain adequate to meet growth targets. Some entities with 
tighter capital positions may raise additional capital, driven by new regulatory requirements such as risk weights 
on consumer credit and leverage guidelines. If strong growth continues, more entities are likely to raise capital in 
the next fiscal year. Profitability of NBFCs is expected to moderate by 20-40 bps YoY in FY2025, with an 
incremental funding requirement of approximately Rs. 3.0 trillion. Entities will continue to reduce on-book 
liquidity due to margin pressures. 

Ref: CIBIL-SIDBI MSME Pulse Report and Report of ICRA released on Jan 24 

REGULATORY CHANGES 

The RBI has introduced several regulatory changes to enhance the stability and functioning of NBFCs and SFL 
ensure the compliance of the same. 

1. Increase in NOF: The net owned fund (NOF) requirement for NBFCs has been increased from ₹2 crore 
to ₹10 crore in a phased manner, with specific deadlines set for different categories of NBFCs. 

2. NPA Classifications: The NPA classification norm has been revised to a more stringent overdue period 
of more than 90 days for all NBFCs by March 31, 2026. 

3. Risk Management Committee: NBFCs are now required to constitute a Risk Management Committee 
to evaluate and manage overall risks, including liquidity risks. 

4. Leverage Ratio: The leverage ratio for NBFCs (except NBFC-MFIs) is capped at seven. 
5. Standard Asset Provisioning: NBFCs are required to make provisions for standard assets at 0.25 

percent of the outstanding. 
6. Disclosures: Expanded disclosure requirements include exposure types, related party transactions, and 

loans to directors/senior officers. 

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

For the financial year ending March 31, 2024, our company recorded a profit of Rs. 514.77 lakhs, compared to 
Rs. 606.30 lakhs in the previous year. This decrease in profit is primarily attributable to the high finance costs, 
including interest paid on debt. 

(In Rs. Lakhs) 
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Total revenue 12,140.51 10,650.69 
Expenses   
Total expenses 11,436.99 9,829.29 
Profit before Tax 703.52 821.40 
Less: Tax Expenses 188.75 215.10 
Profit after Tax 514.77 606.30 
Add: Other comprehensive income (3.24) (8.20) 
Total comprehensive income 511.53 598.10 
Earnings per share   
Basic 0.36 0.38 
Diluted 0.36 0.38 

The total revenue for the year stood at Rs. 12,140.51 lakhs, up from Rs. 10,650.69 lakhs in the previous year, 
reflecting a year-on-year increase. Despite the increase in revenue, total expenses also rose from Rs. 9,829.29 
lakhs to Rs. 11,436.99 lakhs, which impacted the profitability. Company is working on increasing operational 
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efficiency and will bring down the overall operational expenses in effective way and by achieving economies of 
scale. 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

Company Overview 

Satin Finserv Limited (“SFL”) was incorporated as a limited company on August 10, 2018 under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Satin Creditcare Network Limited. SFL is Non-
Banking Finance Company engaged in the business of providing various financial services to entrepreneurs, 
MSMEs and individual businesses, and business correspondence services.  

SFL’s aim is to ‘Serve the small business owners (MSMEs) in a manner that is mutually beneficial’ by providing 
them loans for their business needs. SFL has adopted a unique credit underwriting and assessment model to 
understand the income source and derive eligibility of the potential customers. 

Ownership and Strategic Focus 

The primary objective of SFL is to provide financing solutions to the SME, MSME, and self-employed segments, 
as well as to serve as Business Correspondents on behalf of various banks and financial institutions. SFL's entry 
into the MSME and self-employed loan segments addresses the significant gap in access to organized finance for 
these groups. SFL aims to bridge the financial inclusion gap and support the growth and sustainability of SMEs 
and MSMEs in India. 

Market Share and Presence 

SFL has a significant presence across 11 States through 33 branches dedicated to SME/MSME lending across 
1705 locations. Geographical expansion, large customer reach continue to be critical pillars of the Company’s 
growth. It focuses on two broad categories: (i) MSME Lending, (ii) Commercial Lending. The company’s asset 
size stands at Rs. 461.19 crores. Total Assets Under Management (AUM) for the company is was 501.01 Crores 
out of this Rs 326.37 Pertains to On Book and remaining Rs 174.63 related to Off Book. FDR balance for FLDG 
stood at Rs. 34.63 Crore. Please refer note no. 36 of Balance sheet for Detail of institution wise AUM. As on 31 
March 2024, SFL’s borrowings stood at Rs. 255.06 Crores.  As on 31 March 2024, SFL gross NPA at Rs. 14.09 
crore and net NPA at Rs. 8.62 Crore. 

Disbursements 

Out of the total disbursement of Rs. 401.77 Crores, the company allocated 219.43 Crores to the MSME sector, 
representing 55%, with the remaining disbursements spread across other sectors. This strategic allocation 
underscores our commitment to supporting the MSME sector, which is a critical component  

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE  

Industry Category Performance 

Agriculture Agri Business, Dairy, Agri Equipment, Agri Chemicals/Fertilizers, Cattle Feed, 
Animal Husbandry & Poultry 

Retail Retail/Trading, Kirana/General Store, Chemist, Cloth Merchants, Footwear 
Retailers, Hardware, Electrical, Sanitary Wear Traders/Retailers 

Construction Cement and Steel Traders, Wood and Plastic Traders 

Consumer Goods Consumer Durables Traders, Bakery/Sweet Shops, Bottled Water 
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Services Service (Restaurants, Auto Service Centers, Diagnostic Centers, Tailoring/Job Work, 
Plumbing Work/Electrician, Tent House Businesses) 

Manufacturing Textile and Garments Manufacturer & Job workers, Footwear Manufacturer, Bag 
Manufacturer, Wood & Plastic Furniture Manufacturer 

 Below grid represents products offering by SFL:   

Product Purpose 
Ticket 
Size 

Tenor Collateral Eligibility Criteria 

Small Ticket 
Business 
Loan 

Income Generation Activities, 
Working Capital, Long-term (3-
5 years) or Short-term (1 to <3 
years) Financing 

1.5L to 
3.5L 

60 
Months 

Property 
Minimum age: 22, Business 
stability of minimum 3 years 

Large Ticket 
Business 
Loan 

Term Loans 
Up to 
5Cr 

60 
Months 

Unsecured 

Business stability of minimum 3 
years, Company needs to be 
profitable as per last audited 
financials 

JLG 
Business 

Income Generation Activities 
Up to 
0.65L 

24 
Months 

Unsecured 

Minimum age: 18, Maximum 
household income <3L, Annual 
household obligation to be 50% of 
annual household income 

HUMAN RESOURCES  

The Company has always prioritised providing its employees with a discrimination-free environment that 
promotes diversity and inclusion.  

Employee-centricity has always been a paramount concern for the organization, and your Company has 
implemented various policies and initiatives to ensure the well-being of its employees. These include provisions 
such as advance against medical exigency leaves, Satin Sahyog, Satin Ease, and Satin Suraksha, leaving no stone 
unturned in prioritizing employee welfare. Frequent training programs and extra curriculum activities are 
conducted by the Company to enhance the skills and capabilities of its workforce and to motivate the employees. 

SFL has a robust framework for employee engagement that facilitates the development and retention of a highly 
motivated team. In an effort to strengthen the Company’s journey into the future, it is providing specialised 
training to its employees in accordance with its mission and strategy. The training and development initiatives of 
the Company enable employees to acquire the technical and behavioural skills necessary for their professional 
and personal development. As of March 31, 2024, the Company employed total no. of 1192 individuals, with 40 
no of women. 

Opportunities 

 Geographical Expansion: Expanding geographical reach and increasing the customer base offers 
opportunities to further penetrate underserved regions. 

 Strategic Partnerships: As the Indian market matures have the opportunity to collaborate with Indian 
financial services companies, leveraging their competitive strengths in asset management, general 
insurance, and fintech. 

 Government Initiatives: Increased government spending in the MSME segment aims to boost start-up 
businesses, thereby driving demand for MSME loans. Additionally, Govt. introduced various schemes 
for NBFC for their funding. 
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 Rural Market Penetration: Expanding into rural markets to finance working capital requirements 
presents significant growth opportunities. 

 Regulatory Advantages: Stricter government regulations and norms to restrict competition and deter 
the entry of unorganized players will benefit established industry leaders. 

Threats 

 Intensified Competition: There is growing competition from captive finance companies, small banks, 
fintech firms, and new market entrants, which poses significant challenges. 

 External Risks: Liquidity stress, political uncertainties, and fiscal slippage concerns present external 
risks that can impact operations. 

 Product and Technology Competition: Increasing competition from global and local competitors in 
product development and technological innovations leaves very little room for error. 

 Regulatory and Compliance Changes: Regulatory and compliance-related changes in the sector can 
adversely affect NBFCs, necessitating continuous adaptation and compliance. 

 International Conflicts: The global economy has been significantly disrupted by various international 
conflicts, such as the ongoing war between Israel and Hamas. These tensions, particularly involving 
Israel and Iran, threaten market stability and impact crude oil prices, thereby affecting the Indian 
economy. The World Bank’s latest India Development Update (IDU) revised India’s growth rate for the 
fiscal year 2023-24 to 6.3% from the previous 7.2%, citing "intensifying global headwinds." These 
conflicts highlight the interconnected nature of global economies and the importance of geopolitical 
stability for sustained economic growth. 

 Data Privacy Concerns: The generation, collection, processing, and storage of vast amounts of data 
raise significant privacy concerns. Global regulators emphasize the need for accountability in handling 
personal customer data, necessitating robust controls to avoid penalties and disruptions. 

 Statutory Recovery Challenges: Recovering dues from customers is a challenging task, leading to 
fluctuations in the company's profitability. 

 Limited Leverage Ratio: As a middle-layer NBFC, the company must maintain a Capital Adequacy 
Ratio (CRAR) comprising Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital, which should be no less than 15% of its aggregate 
risk-weighted assets on the balance sheet and the risk-adjusted value of off-balance sheet items. This 
requirement imposes constraints on leveraging capabilities. 

 

RISKS/ CONCERNS 

 Cybersecurity and Operational Risks 

NBFCs face significant cybersecurity threats, including data breaches and unauthorized access to 
sensitive information. To mitigate these risks, Your Company constituted Information Technology 
Committee, who conduct regular risk assessments and deploy advanced security technologies. 

 Climate Risk 

Climate change has emerged as a significant and comprehensive global concern, affecting various aspects 
of human existence. The Financial sector, including non-banking Financial companies (NBFCs), is not 
exempt from this concern.  

 Liquidity Risks 

The Company maintains a flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit 
lines. The Company’s liquidity risk is managed through a comprehensive framework of policies and 
processes approved by the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO). 
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 Interest Rate Risk 

The risk arising from a financial loss, owing to unfavourable interest rates for both lending and treasury 
operations. It has a significant influence upon a company’s net-interest income and profitability. 

 

 MSME Finance Risk 

MSME Financing risk refers to the potential for financial losses or adverse outcomes associated with 
providing Financial services to Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises. This risk arises from factors 
such as creditworthiness, market conditions, operational challenges, regulatory compliance, interest rate 
fluctuations, technological advancements, and external shocks. 

 
 Market Risk  
 

Market risk is the potential risk of Financial loss arising from adverse movements in market factors, 
such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, and others, that impact 
earnings and capital. To mitigate this risk the Board of Directors constituted The Asset Liability 
Management Committee (ALCO) 

 
 Credit Risks from Rule-Based Credit Models 

While rule-based credit engines enhance efficiency, NBFCs must recognize their limitations and 
continuously monitor and validate credit scoring models. Overreliance on historical data or algorithms 
can lead to inaccuracies, necessitating regular recalibration and validation of these models. 

For more understanding, please refer to point no. 41 of Notes to Balance sheet. 

Strong Risk Management:  

Strong and effective risk management helps the Company to mitigate financial losses, ensure regulatory 
compliance and enhance client confidence. For identifying and addressing potential risks, the Company 
constituted Risk Management Committee, to ensure safeguards the Compliances, mitigate potential risks, 
improves operational efficiency, capitalise the opportunities and report the deviation to the Board. Effective risk 
management practices and policies enable the Company to navigate market uncertainties and maintain a 
competitive edge in the industry. For more detail, please refer Note No. 41 of the balance Sheet tabled under 
Financial Section. 

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND ADEQUACY 

The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, protection and conservation 
of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. The 
internal control system is supported by an internal audit process for reviewing the adequacy and efficacy of the 
Company’s internal controls, including its systems and processes and compliance with regulations and procedures. 
Your Company have proper Checker Maker system in all departments. The Statutory Auditors also review and 
specify the internal financial controls in its report.  

Disclaimer  

This document contains statements about expected future events and financials of Satin Finserv Limited (SFL), 
which are forward-looking. By their nature, forward-looking statements require the Company to make 
assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is a significant risk that the assumptions, 
predictions and other forward-looking statements may not prove to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place 
undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a number of factors could cause assumptions, actual future results 
and events to differ materially from those expressed in the forward looking statements. Accordingly, this 
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document is subject to the disclaimer and qualified in its entirety by the assumptions, qualifications and risk factors 
referred to in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Report. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

1) Composition of the Board 

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of Satin Finserv Limited (the ‘Company’) as tabled 
below: 

S. 
N
o. 

Name of 
Director 

Director 
since 

Capacity      (i.e. 
Executive/ 
Non-Executive/ 
Chairman/ 
Promoter 
nominee/ 
Independent) 

DIN Number of 
Board Meetings 

No. 
of 
oth
er 
Dir
ecto
r 
shi
ps 

Remuneration No. of 
shares 
held in 
and 
convertibl
e 
instrumen
ts held in 
the 
Company 

Held Attende
d 

Salary 
and 
other 
compen 
sation 

Sitting 
Fee 

Co
mm 
issi
on 

 

1. Mr 
Harvinder 
Pal Singh 

August 
10, 2018 

 
Non-Executive 

0033
3754 

7 7 7 - - - Nil 

2. Mr. Anil 
Kumar Kalra 

August 
10, 2018 

Independent 0736
1739 

7 7 2 - 2.20 
Lakhs 

- Nil 

3. Mr. Sundeep 
Kumar 
Mehta 

August 
10, 2018 

Independent 0084
0544 

7 7 2 - 1.90 
Lakhs 

- Nil 

4. Ms. Jyoti 
Ahluwalia 

March 
30, 2021 

Independent 0911
2407 

7 7 1 - 0.70 
Lakhs 

- Nil 

5. Mr. 
Bhuvnesh 
Khanna 

March 
22, 2024 

Executive 0332
3118 

- - - 
32.39 
Lakhs 

-  Nil 

 
  Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous Financial Year:  

 
S.No.  Name of Director Capacity (i.e. Executive/ 

Non-Executive/ Chairman/ 
Promoter nominee/ 
Independent) 

Nature of 
Change 
(resignation, 
appointment) 

Effective Date 

1 Mr. Sumit Mukherjee Executive Resignation August 31, 2023 
2 Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna Executive Appointment March 22, 2024 

 
During the period under review, there was no change in the Independent Directors of the Company. Further states 
that there is no relationship amongst the directors of the Company. 

 
2) Committees of the Board and their Composition 

i) Audit Committee: 
 
The Audit Committee constituted in terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of RBI 
guidelines. As on March 31, 2024, the Committee comprises of (Three) members including 2 (Two) Independent 
Directors and 1 (One) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. 
 
The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings during the 
financial year 2023-24 are given below: 
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S. 
No.  

Name of Director Member 
of 
Committe
e since 

Capacity (i.e. 
Executive/ 
Non-
Executive/ 
Chairman/ 
Promoter 
nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of Meetings of the 
Committee 

No. of 
shares 
held in 
the 
Company 

Held Attended 

1. Mr. Sundeep Kumar 
Mehta 

January 31, 
2019 

Chairman 
 

5 5 Nil 

2. Mr. Harvinder Pal 
Singh  

January 31, 
2019 

Non-Executive 5 5 Nil 

3. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra January 31, 
2019 

Independent 5 5 Nil 

 
Terms of reference of Audit Committee are as under: 
 

 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the 
Company. 

 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of 
audit process. 

 Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon. 
 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties. 
 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments. 
 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary. 
 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 
 Monitoring the end use of funds raised and related matters. 
 To carry out any other function in terms of any other applicable guidelines or in any other 

applicable law. 

ii) Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) constituted in terms of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and in terms of applicable Master Directions issued by RBI. As on March 31, 2024, NRC comprises of 
3 (Three) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1 (One) Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Director.  
 
The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the NRC meetings during the financial year 
2023-24 are given below: 
 

 
Terms of reference of NRC are as under: 

S. 
No.  

Name of 
Director 

Member of 
Committee 
since 

Capacity (i.e. 
Executive/ 
Non-
Executive/ 
Chairman/ 
Promoter 
nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 
the Committee 

No. of shares 
held in the 
Company 

Held Attended 

1. Mr. Sundeep 
Kumar Mehta 

January 31, 
2019 

Chairman 
 

3 3 Nil 

2. Mr. Harvinder Pal 
Singh  

January 31, 
2019 

Non-Executive 3 3 Nil 

3.   Mr. Anil Kumar 
Kalra 

January 31, 
2019 

Independent 3 3 Nil 
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 Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance; 

 Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director 
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees; 

 Ensure and determine that the Board comprises of a balanced combination of Executive Directors and 
Non-executive Directors and also the Independent Directors and size of the Board and its diversity; 

 Devise framework to ensure that Directors are inducted through suitable familiarization process 
covering their roles, responsibility and liability and ensuring that there is an appropriate induction & 
training programme in place for new Directors and members of Senior Management and other 
employees of the Company and reviewing its effectiveness; 

 Decide / approve details of fixed components and performance linked incentives (if any) along with the 
performance criteria; 

 Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation; 
 Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the 

Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective; 
 Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of 

any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as 
an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their Service contract; 

 Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee; 
 Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; 
 Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board; and to consider and determine the 

Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the remuneration is 
reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as 
the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board; 

 To approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the 
Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term 
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company; 

 To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management; 

 To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management;  

 To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, 
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations;  

 To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial 
persons and create competitive advantage;  

 To devise a policy on Board diversity;  
 To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan; 
 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board; 
 To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial 

persons and create competitive advantage; 
 To implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance; 
 Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management; 
 Oversee the formulation and implementation of ESOP Schemes, its administration, supervision and 

formulating detailed terms and conditions in accordance with applicable laws; 
 To evaluate case by case before finalizing issue of Equity Shares to employees under ESOP, formulate 

and evaluate policies and procedures of ESOP and other related activities; 
 Any other matter as required by the applicable laws and defined by the Board, from time to time. 
 

iii) Risk Management Committee: 
 
The Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) constituted in terms of applicable Master Directions issued by RBI. 
As on March 31, 2024, RMC comprises of 4 (Four) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors, 1 (One) 
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 1 (One) Internal Executive.  
 
The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the RMC meetings during the financial year 
2023-24 are given below: 
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S. 
No.  

Name of Director Member of 
Committee 
since 

Capacity (i.e. 
Executive/ 
Non-Executive/ 
Chairman/ 
Promoter 
nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of 
Meetings of the 
Committee 

No. of shares held 
in the Company 

Held Attended 

1. Mr. Sundeep Kumar 
Mehta   

May 2, 2019 Independent 2 2 Nil 

2. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra May 2, 2019 Independent 2 2 Nil 
3.    Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh May 2, 2019 Non-Executive 2 2 Nil 
4. *Mr. Sumit  Mukherjee August 3, 

2021 
Executive 2 1 Nil 

5. Mr. Surojit Chatterjee  October 21, 
2022 

Head- Credit & 
Risk 

2 2 Nil 

*Mr. Sumit Mukherjee (DIN: 08369056), Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company, had resigned w.e.f August 
31, 2023. 
 
Terms of reference of RMC are as under: 
 

 Recommend to the board and then formally announce, implement and maintain a sound system of 
risk oversight, management and internal control which: 

 Identifies, assesses, manages and monitors risk; and  

 Allows investors and other stakeholders to be informed of material changes to the 
company's risk profile.  

 Recommend to the board and then formally announce clear standards of ethical behaviour required 
of the senior management as well as the staff.  

 In discharging its responsibility, the committee is to develop and seek Board approval for a range of 
specific duties that it is to carry out. Such duties will vary depending on the company's 
circumstances, the committee's responsibilities and, in particular, the role of the Board and other 
committee, such as internal audit, operations, finance etc. 

 To carry out any other function as may be delegated by the Board of directors of the Company from 
time to time. 

iv) Asset Liability Management Committee: 
 
The Asset Liability Management Committee (“ALMC”) constituted in terms of applicable Master Directions 
issued by RBI. As on March 31, 2024, ALMC comprises of 3 (Three) members including 1 (One) Executive 
Director, 1 (One) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 1 (One) Internal Executive.  
 
The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the ALMC meetings during the financial year 
2023-24 are given below: 
 

S. 
No.  

Name of 
Director 

Member of 
Committee 
since 

Capacity (i.e. 
Executive/ 
Non-
Executive/ 
Chairman/ 
Promoter 
nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 
the Committee 

No. of shares 
held in the 
Company 

Held Attended 

1. *Mr. Sumit 
Mukherjee 

February 22, 
2019 

Executive 2 2 Nil 
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2. Mr. Harvinder Pal 
Singh  

February 22, 
2019 

Non-Executive 2 2 Nil 

3.   Mr. Arjun Bansal August 3,   
2021  

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

2 2 Nil 

4. **Mr. Bhuvnesh 
Khanna  

January 19, 
2024 

Executive 2 1 Nil 

*Mr. Sumit Mukherjee (DIN: 08369056), Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company, had resigned w.e.f August 
31, 2023. 
**Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna (DIN: 03323118) has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. January 19, 2024 
and subsequently appointed as Whole Time Director & CEO w.e.f. March 22, 2024. 
 
Terms of reference of ALMC are as under: 
 

 To address concerns regarding asset liability mismatches,  
 To address Interest rate risk exposure, 
 To Achieve optimal return on capital employed while maintaining acceptable levels of risk including and 

relating to liquidity, market and operational aspects, 
 Adhering to the relevant policies and regulations,  
 To carry out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the ALM committee and also 

in terms of any other applicable guidelines or any other applicable law and 
 To carry out any other function as may be delegated by the Board of directors of the Company from time 

to time. 
 

v) IT Strategy Committee: 
 
The IT Strategy Committee (“ITSC”) constituted in terms of applicable Master Directions issued by RBI. As on 
March 31, 2024, ITSC comprises of 6 (Six) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors, 1 (One) Executive 
Director, 1 (One) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 2 (Two) Internal Executives.  
 
The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the ITSC meetings during the financial year 
2023-24 are given below: 
 

S. 
No.  

Name of Director Memb
er of 
Commi
ttee 
since 

Capacity (i.e. 
Executive/ 
Non-
Executive/ 
Chairman/ 
Promoter 
nominee/ 
Independent) 

Number of Meetings of 
the Committee 

No. of shares 
held in NBFC 

Held Attended 

1. Mr. Sundeep Kumar 
Mehta 

May 2, 
2019 

Independent 4 4 NA 

2. Mr. Harvinder Pal 
Singh  

January 
19, 
2024 

Non-Executive 4 1 NA 

3. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra January 
19, 
2024 

Independent 4 1 NA 

4. Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna January 
19, 
2024 

Executive 4 1 NA 

5. Mr. Arjun Bansal August 
3, 2021 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

4 4 NA 

6. Mr. Sunil Yadav August 
3, 2021 

Head – IT 
(SCNL) 

4 4 NA 

7. *Mr. Sumit Mukherjee May 2, 
2019 

Executive 4 1 NA 
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*Mr. Sumit Mukherjee (DIN: 08369056), Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company, had resigned w.e.f August 
31, 2023. 
 

3) General Body Meetings: 
 
Details of General Body Meetings held during the financial year 2023-24 are given below: 
 
 
 

S. 
No. 

Type of Meeting (Annual/Extra-Ordinary 
General Meeting) 

Date and Place Special Resolutions 
Passed 

1. Annual General Meeting July 27, 2023 
Gurugram, Haryana 

0 

2. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting August 7, 2023 
Gurugram, Haryana 

2 

3. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting September 7, 2023  
Gurugram, Haryana 

0 

4. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting January 19, 2024  
Gurugram, Haryana 

3 

5. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting March 22, 2024 
Gurugram, Haryana 

1 

 
4) Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013- There was no instances of material 
non-compliances with requirements of Companies Act, 2013. 
 
5) Details of penalties and strictures- Nil 
 































































































































 
 

 
SATIN FINSERV LIMITED 

Registered & Corporate Office: 4th Floor, ‘B’ Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar,  
Phase -III Gurugram, Haryana - 122016 

| CIN : U65999HR2018PLC099128 | Landline No : 0124 – 47154000 | 
| E-Mail ID : info@satinfinserv.com | Website : www.satinfinserv.com | 

 
 

NOTICE 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Satin Finserv Limited 
will be held on Thursday, August 8, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at 4th Floor, B 
Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase III, Gurugram – 122016, Haryana, to transact the following business: 
 
Ordinary Business: 
 
1. ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE REPORTS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AND AUDITORS  
 
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company including the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the cash flow statement for the financial year ended on March 
31, 2024, notes to financial statements, reports of the Board and Auditors’ thereon be and are hereby received, 
considered and adopted.” 
 

2. RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR  
 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh (DIN: 00333754) who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to 
retire by rotation.” 

 

3. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS  
 

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), and 
rules made thereunder, and Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company – Scale 
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, as amended, and based on recommendation of the Audit Committee and 
Board of Directors of the Company, M/s Rajeev Bhatia and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 
No. 021776N), having a valid Peer Review Certificate issued by Peer Review Board of Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, who being eligible for appointment as Statutory Auditors in terms of Section 141 of the Act 
& applicable rules, guidelines and circular issued by the Reserve Bank of India, from time to time, be and are 
hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the term of 5 years i.e. from the conclusion of 
Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company to till the conclusion of Eleventh Annual General Meeting of the 
Company 7 on such terms and conditions, including remuneration, reimbursement of expenses (if any) as may be 



fixed and determined by the Board of Directors, as per recommendation of the Audit Committee and in 
consultation with the said Auditors. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, including any Committee thereof, be 
and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable 
or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.” 

 
 
 
 
 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: July 24, 2024 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Satin Finserv Limited 

 
 

Sd/- 
(Gurvinder Singh) 

Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer 
 

  



Notes: 

1. Information in accordance with Secretarial Standard 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
for Item No. 2 is annexed as Annexure-1 to this notice. 

2. A Shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of 
himself/herself and such proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company. A person can act as proxy on 
behalf of Shareholder not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the 
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. However, a Shareholder holding more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy 
and such person shall not act as proxy for any other shareholders. 

3. Shareholders desirous of obtaining any information/clarification(s) concerning the accounts and operations 
of the Company or intending to raise any query are requested to forward the same at least One Hours before 
the date of the meeting to Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company, so that the same may 
be attended to appropriately. 

4. Shareholders/Proxies are requested to bring their duly filled attendance slip sent herewith at the Meeting. 
5. A blank proxy form is enclosed hereto and if intended to be used, it should be returned duly completed at the 

registered office of the Company not less than One hour before the scheduled time of the Commencement of 
the Meeting. 

6. Shareholders can inspect the register of director and key managerial personnel and their shareholding and 
register of contracts or arrangements as maintained under Sections 170 and 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 
during the course of the meeting at the venue. 

7. Shareholders holding equity capital shall have one vote per share. 
8. Corporate Shareholders intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested 

to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend 
and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

9. All documents referred to in accompanying notice and the statement shall be open for inspection at the 
Registered Office of the Company during the normal business hours from 09:00 a.m. to 06:00 p.m. on all 
working days, expect Saturdays and Sundays up to and including the date of Sixth Annual General Meeting 
of the Company and will also be available for the inspection  

10. To route map showing direction to reach the venue of Sixth Annual General Meeting is annexed. 
 
                  

 
 
 
 
Place: Gurugram 
Date: July 24, 2024 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Satin Finserv Limited 

 
 

Sd/- 
Gurvinder Singh 

    Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer 
 

  



ANNEXURE-1 TO THE NOTICE 

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 2 ISSUED BY INSTITUTE OF COMPANY 
SECRETARIES OF INDIA 

Name of the Director  Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh 
Date of Birth December 24, 1960 
Age 64 Years 
DIN 00333754 
Qualifications A fellow member of ICAI since 1984; Participated in Harvard 

Business School’s Accion program and a leadership program at 
Wharton Business School 
 

Brief Profile & Experience Mr. Harvinder Pal Singh has over three decades of microfinance 
experience to his credit and is responsible for pioneering the 
unique concept of daily collection of repayments of loans. Aside 
being an expert in lending, particularly in the microfinance field, 
Mr. Singh also has a wealth of experience across auditing, 
accounts, project financing, advisory services and company law 
matters. It is his financial engineering acumen, honed over 
almost thirty years of experience that has helped SCNL achieve 
its success in operational strategy and efficiency. Mr. Singh also 
participated in Harvard Business School’s Accion Program on 
Strategic Leadership for Microfinance in 2009, as well as the 
leadership program organized by Women’s World Banking at 
Wharton Business School, University of Pennsylvania in 2011. 
Mr. Singh has been an inspiration right from the very beginning 
when the company came into being in 1990, till today where he 
continues to be actively involved in the company’s day-to-day 
operations. Under his leadership, SCNL has grown into one of 
India’s leading microfinance institutions in the North and is 
poised to further expand its operations across the country. 

Date of First Appointment on the Board August 10, 2018 
Terms and conditions of appointment or 
re-appointment 

As per the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No. 2 of this 
Notice 

Details of Remuneration sought to be 
paid (per annum) 

NIL 

Remuneration last drawn (Rs. In Lakhs) NIL 
Directorships held in other companies 
(excluding foreign companies) as on 
date 

 Trishashna Holdings & Investments Private Limited 
 Satin Creditcare Foundation 
 Parishek Finance Private Limited 
 Riwaaz Investments Private Limited 
 Satin Creditcare Network Limited 
 Tomorrow’s One Capital Pte. Limited 
 Prestellar Ventures Fund I Pte. Ltd. 
 Satin Housing Finance Limited 



Chairmanship / Memberships of 
committees across companies of the 
Board 

Name of the Committee Designation  
Audit Committee Member 
Risk Management 
Committee 

Member 

Asset Liability 
Management Committee 

Member 

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

Member 

IT Strategy Committee Member 
 

Shareholding in the Company  NIL 
Relationship with other Directors/ 
Manager/ Key Managerial Personnel 

NIL 

Number of Board Meetings attended 
during the FY 2023-24 

7 

 

  



ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(To be presented at the entrance) 

Shareholders are requested to complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the Registered Office of the 
Company.  Only Shareholders or their Proxies are entitled to be present at the Sixth Annual General Meeting.  

Name:      Sh. Cert. No. /Folio No. / DP & Client ID:  

Address:       No. of Shares Held:     
          

I hereby record my presence at the Sixth Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, August 8, 2024 at 11:00 
A.M. at its registered office at 4th Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana - 
122016 

SIGNATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER/PROXY * 

 

*Strike out whichever is not applicable. 

 

  



Form No. MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
CIN: U65999HR2018PLC099128 
Name of the Company: Satin Finserv Limited  
Address: 4th Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase-III Gurugram, Haryana- 122016 
 
 
Name of the Shareholder(s):     
Registered Address:      
E-mail Id: 
Folio No. / Sh. Cert. No. DP & Client ID:  
We, being the shareholder of Satin Finserv Limited for_________Equity shares, hereby appoint 

1. Name: 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
2.Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
3.EmailId:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
4. Signature:………………………………………………………………………………...…, or failing him 
 
1.Name:……………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
2.Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
3.EmailId:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
4. Signature:………………………………………………………………………………...…, or failing him 
 
1.Name:……………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
2.Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
3.EmailId:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
4.Signature:………………………………………………………………………………...……………………. 
as our proxy to attend and vote by show of hands/ (on a poll) for us and on our behalf at the Sixth Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, August 8, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. at its registered office at 4th 
Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase-III, Gurugram - 122016, Haryana and at any adjournment thereof 
in respect of such resolution as are indicated below: 

RESOLUTION NO. 1: ADOPTION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE REPORTS OF BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2: RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR 
  
RESOLUTION NO. 3: APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 
 

 

Date:______________,      

 

Signature of the shareholder/Authorized Representative 
 
Note: 
1.) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 

of the Company, not less than One hour before the commencement of the Meeting. 
2.) Those shareholder who have multiple folios with different joint holders may use copies of this attendance 

slip/Proxy form. 
3.) Inspection of proxies shall be allowed between 09:00 a.m. to 06:00 p.m. 

 
 

 

Affix Re. 1 
Revenue 
Stamp 



ROUTE MAP 

Venue of Sixth Annual General Meeting 
4th Floor, B wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar, Phase-III, Gurugram - 122016, Haryana 
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